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RESPONDENT 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER 

The Director of the Superfund Division of the Uirited States Environmental Protection 

Agency (EPA), Region 6 (Complainant) and Seaboard Foods LLC (Respondent) in the above-

referenced proceeding, hereby agree to resolve this matter through the issuance of this Consent 

Agreement and Final Order (CAFO). 

I. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

1. This proceeding for the assessment of civil penalties is brought by EPA pursuant to 

Section 113(d) of the Clean Air Act (CAA), 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d), and is simultaneously 

commenced and concluded throu~h the issuance of this CAFO pursuant to 40 C.F .R. 

§§ 22.13(b), 22.18(b)(2) and (3), and 22.34. 

2. For the purposes of this proceeding, the Respondent admits the jurisdictional 

allegations contained herein; however, the Respondent neither admits nor denies the specific 

factual allegations and legal conclusions contained in this CAFO. 

3. The Respondent explicitly waives any right to contest the allegations and its right to 

appeal the proposed Final Order set forth therein, and waives all defenses which have been raised 

or could have been raised to the claims set forth in the CAFO. 
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4. Compliance with all the terms and conditions of this CAFO shall only resolve the 

Respondent's liability for Federal civil penalties for those violations and facts which are set forth 

herein. 

5. The Respondent consents to the issuance of the CAFO, to the assessment and payment 

of the civil penalty in the amount and by the method set forth in this CAFO, and the conditions 

specified in the CAFO. 

6. Each undersigned representative of the parties to this agreement certifies that he or she 

is fully authorized by the party represented to enter into the terms and conditions of this 

agreement, to execute it, and to legally bind that party to it. 

7. This CAFO shall apply to and be binding upon the Respondent, its officers, directors, 

servants, employees, agents, authorized representatives, successors and assigns. 

II. . FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

A. PRELIMINARY ALLEGATIONS 

8. Seaboard Foods LLC (Respondent) is an Oklahoma limited liability company. 

9. "Person" is defined in Section 302(e) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7602(e), as "an 

individual, corporation, partnership, association, State, municipality, political subdivision of a 

State, and any agency of the United States and any officer, agent, or employee thereof." 

10. The Respondent is a "person" as defined by Section 302(e) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. 

§ 7602(e). 

11. The Respondent operates a pork processing plant located at 2700 N.E. 281h Street, 

Guymon, Oklahoma 73942. 

12. "Stationary source" is defined by Section 112(r)(2)(C) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. 

§ 7412(r)(2)(C), and 40 C.F.R. § 68.3 as meaning: 
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any buildings, structures, equipment, installations or substance emitting stationary 
activities which belong to tbe same industrial group, which are located on one or 
more contiguous properties, which are under the control of tbe same person (or 
persons under common control), and from which an accidental release may occur. 

13. The Respondent's facility identified in Paragraph 11 is a "stationary source" as that 

term is defined by Section 112(r)(2)(C) oftbe CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(r)(2)(C), and 40 C.F.R. 

§ 68.3. 

14. The Respondent is the owner and/or operator of the stationary source identified in 

Paragraph 11. 

15. Ammoriia (anhydrous) is a "regulated substance", as set forth in 40 C.F.R. § 68.130. 

16. The threshold quantity for ammonia (anhydrous) is 10,000 pounds. 

17. "Process" is defined in 40 C.F.R. § 68.3 as meaning 

any activity involving a regulated substance including any use, storage, 
manufacturing, handling, or on-site movement of such substances, or combination 
of activities. For the purpose of this definition, any group of vessels that are 
intercounected, or separate vessels tbat are located such that a regulated substance 
could be involved in a potential release, shall be considered a single process. 

18. The Respondent operates the following anhydrous anunonia refrigeration systems at 

tbe stationary source identified in Paragraph 11: 

A. Main System; and 

B. Auxiliary System. 

19. The Respondent has exceeded tbe threshold quantity for anunonia (anhydrous) at tbe 

anhydrous ammonia refrigeration system (Main System). 

20. The Respondent has exceeded the threshold quantity for anunonia (anhydrous) at tbe 

anhydrous ammonia refrigeration system (Auxiliary System). 

21. "Covered process" is defined in 40 C.F.R. § 68.3 as meaning "a process that has a 

regulated substance present in more tban a threshold quantity as determined under§ 68.115." 
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22. The processes identified in Paragraphs 18.A and 18.B. are each a "covered process" 

as that that term is defined by 40 C.F.R. § 68.3. 

23. The covered processes identified in Paragraphs 18, 19, 20, and 22 are subject to the 

"Program 3" requirements of the RMP regulations and must, among other things, comply with 

the Program 3 Prevention Program of 40 C.F.R. Part 68, Subpatt D. 

24. Section 113(d)(1) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d), authorizes EPA to bring an 

administrative action if the first alleged date of violation occurred more than twelve (12) months 

prior to the initiation of the action, ifthe Administrator and the United States Attorney General 

jointly determine that the matter is appropriate for administrative action. 

25. EPA and the U.S. Department ofJustice have jointly determined that the 

Complainant can administratively assess a civil penalty even though the alleged violations have 

occurred more than twelve (12) months prior to the initiation of the administrative action. 

26. On or about August 19,2014, and March 30, 2015, a representative of EPA 

conducted an inspection of the Respondent's facility. 

27. On or about February 10,2016, EPA issued a Clean Air Act Section 114 Information 

Request Letter (Information Request) to the Respondent pursuant to Section 114 of the CAA, 

42 u.s.c. § 7414. 

28. On or about Apri\18, 2016, the Respondent submitted its Response to the 

Information Request. The Respondent submitted written responses to EPA correspondence and 

supplement information requests on June 8, 15, and 16, 2016; on September 13, 2016; on 

October 17, 2016; and on February 24, 2017. 
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B. VIOLATIONS 

Count One - Failure to Timely Determine and Document Responses to Deficiencies 
in 2014 and 2015 Compliance Audits 

29. 40 C.P.R. § 68.79 provides the following: 

(a) The owner or operator shall certify that they have evaluated compliance with the 
provisions of this subpart at least every three years to verify that procedures and practices 
developed under this subpart are adequate and are being followed. 

* * * * 
(c) A report of the findings of the audit shall be developed. 

(d) The owner or operator shall promptly determine and document an appropriate 
response to each of the findings of the compliance audit, and document that deficiencies 
have been corrected. · 

30. On or about January 13,2014, the Respondent conducted a compliance audit for the 

covered processes at the facility identified in Paragraph 11. 

31. The Respondent failed to timely determine and document an appropriate response to 

certain findings for the compliance audit identified in Paragraph 30. 

32. On or about May 26-27, 2015, the Respondent conducted a compliance audit for the 

. covered processes at the facility identified in Paragraph 11. 

33. The Respondent failed to timely determine and document an appropriate response to 

certain findings for the compliance audit identified in Paragraph 32. 

34. Therefore, the Respondent violated 40 C.P.R. § 68.79(d) by failing to timely 

determine and document appropriate responses to certain findings of two compliance audits. 

Count Two- Failure to Follow Operating Procedures- February 26, 2014 Incident 

35. 40 C.P.R.§ 68.69(a) provides that the owner or operator shall develop and 

implement written operating procedures that provide clear instructions for safely conducting 
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activities involved in each covered process consistent with process safety information and shall 

address at least the following elements: 

A. Steps for each operating phase: 

1. Initial startup; 
2. Normal operations; 
3. Temporary operations; 
4. Emergency shutdown including the conditions under which emergency shutdown is 
required, and the assigmnent of shutdown responsibility to qualified operators to ensure 
that emergency shutdown is executed in a timely manner; 
5. Emergency operations; 
6. Normal shutdown; and 
7. Startup following a turnaround, or after an emergency shutdown. 

B. Operating Limits. 

36. The Ross Tunnel and Ross Accumulator are part of the Auxil!ary System covered 

process. 

37. On or about February 26, 2014, a release of approximately 425 pounds of anhydrous 

armnonia occurred at the facility identified in Paragraph 11. 

38. The cause of the release was a broken \4'' male threaded purge valve. 

39. The Respondent's incident investigation conducted after the February 26, 2014 

ammonia release stated the following: 

A. The \4'' purge valve was partially broken from either a factory defect or over 

torqueing when installed during the expansion in 2013. 

B. The Hand Expansion Valve feeding the Ross Accumulator was also found at four 

turns open. The normal is only two turns open. The Hand Expansion Valve feeding the coils on 

the Ross Tunnel was open seven turns. This is normally only 2.5 turns open. 

C. Some conditions which contributed to the cause of the incident include a transfer 

solenoid valve was in the fully open in the manual condition which would energize the transfer 
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solenoid valve. The Ross Accumulator was in a high level condition which would energize the 

transfer solenoid value to be open. The Ross liquid pump was on which allows liquid flow 

through the transfer solenoid valve. The Ross Tmmel freezer was in the defrost/clean up mode 

which allowed hot gas to exit the freezer unit until its defrost reliefline which ties into the same 

suction header at the transfer line. 

40. The Ross Accumulator (GCS) Operating Procedure requires the following: 

A. The Hand Expansion Valve feeding the Ross Accumulator is opened two turns. 

B. The Hand Expansion Valve feeding the coils on the Ross Tunnel is opened 2.5 turns. 

41. Therefore, the Respondent violated 40 C.F.R. § 68.69(a) by failing to properly 

implement certain operating procedures for the Ross Accumulator. 

Count Three -Failure to Maintain Process Safety Information 

42. 40 C.F.R. § 68.65(a) and (d)(l)(i) provide that in accordance with the schedule set 

forth in§ 68.67, the owner or operator shall complete a compilation of written process safety 

information before conducting any process hazard analysis required by the rule. The compilation 

of written process safety information is to enable the owner or operator and the employees 

involved in operating the process to identify and understand the hazards posed by those 

processes involving regulated substances. This process safety information shall include 

information pertaining to the hazards of the regulated substances used or produced by the 

process, information pertaining to the technology of the process, and information pertaining to 

the equipment in the process. Information pertaining to the equipment in the process shall 

include materials of construction. 

43. On or about May 2, 2014, a release of approximately 5,140 pounds of anhydrous 

ammonia occurred at the facility identified in Paragraph 11. The release occurred when a one 
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inch, schedule 40 seamed nipple which was under insulation, had broken off at the threads at the 

CS-216 evaporator unit. Two other pipes were later discovered to be constructed of schedule 40 

steel. 

44. The Respondent's process safety information requires that pipe 1 Yz inch diameter or 

smaller be schedule 80 steel. 

· 45. On or about February 10,2016, EPA issued a Clean Air Act Section 114 Information 

Request Letter (Request) to the Respondent pursuant to Section 114 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 

7414. Question 14 of the Request stated the following: 

Provide a copy of the process safety information relating to the materials of construction 
for the three lines of piping that were schedule 40 steel (as referenced in your December 
19,2014 Letter to EPA). This information includes, but is not limited to: 

A. Line identification number; 
B. Engineering documents; 
C. Purchase orders; 
D. Manufacturer's specification; 
E. Work orders; and 
F. As built drawings. 

46. In its Response, the Respondent stated that "[ w ]e have searched all storage locations 

where we would expect relevant records to be kept and are unable to locate the process safety 

information from the original construction of the plant in 1996." 

47. Therefore, the Respondent violated 40 C.F.R. § 68.65(d)(1) by failing to compile 

information regarding the materials of construction of the three pipes identified in Paragraph 57. 

Count Four- Failure to Ensure Equipment is Installed Properly- April26, 2016 
Incident 

48. 40 C.F.R. § 68.73(f)(2) provides that appropriate checks and inspections shall be 

performed to ensure that equipment is installed properly and consistent with design 

specifications and manufacturer's instructions. 
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49. On or about April25, 2016, a release of approximately 667 pounds of anhydrous 

ammonia from Valve Alley (CS-41) suction valve occurred at the facility set forth in Paragraph 

11. 

50. Over-torqueing of the bolts on the valve at the time the valve was replaced, which 

resulted in differential pressure on the gasket and eventual failure of the gasket, contributed to 

the release. 

51. Therefore, the Respondent violated 40 C.F.R. § 68.73(f)(2) by failing to ensure that 

the valve identified in Paragraph 49 was installed properly and consistent with design 

specifications and manufacturer's instructions. 

III. TERMS OF SETTLEMENT 

A. CIVIL PENALTY 

52. For the reasons set forth above, the Respondent has agreed to pay a civil penalty of 

Forty-Nine Thousand, One Hundred Seventy-Six Dollars ($49,176). 

53. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this CAFO, the Respondent shall pay 

the assessed civil penalty by company check, certified check, cashier's check, or wire transfer, 

made payable to "Treasurer, United States of America, EPA- Region 6". Payment shall be 

remitted in one of three (3) ways: regular U.S: Postal mail (including certified mail), overnight 

mail, or wire transfer. For regular U.S. Postal mail, U.S. Postal Service certified mail, or U.S. 

Postal Service express mail, the check should be remitted to: 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
Cincinnati Finance Center 
P.O. Box 979077 
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000 
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For overnight mail (non-U.S. Postal Service, e.g. Fed Ex), the check should be remitted 

U.S. Bank 
Government Lockbox 979077 
US EPA Fines & Penalties 
1005 Convention Plaza 
SL-MO-C2-GL 
St. Louis, MO 63101 
Phone No. (314) 418-1028 

For wire transfer, the payment should be remitted to: 

Federal Reserve Bank of New York 
ABA: 021030004 
Account No. 68010727 
SWIFT address = FRNYUS33 
33 Liberty Street 
New York, NY 10045 
Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read 
"D 68010727 Environmental Protection Agency" with a phone number of ( 412) 
234-4381 ". 

PLEASE NOTE: Docket Number CAA-06-2017-3514 shall be clearly typed on the check 

or other method of payment to ensure proper credit. If payment is made by check, the check 

shall also be accompanied by a transmittal letter and shall reference the Respondent's name and 

address, the case name, and docket number of the CAFO. If payment is made by wire transfer, 

the wire transfer instructions shall reference the Respondent's name and address, the case name, 

and docket number of the CAFO. The Respondent shall also send a simultaneous notice of such 

payment, including a copy of the check and transmittal letter, or wire transfer instructions to the 

following: 

Elizabeth Rogers 
RMP Enforcement Officer 
Superfund Prevention and Response Branch (6SF-EP) 
U.S. EPA, Region 6 
1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1200 
Dallas, TX 75202-2733 
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The Respondent's adherence to this request will ensure proper credit is given when penalties are 

received in the Region. 

54. The Respondent agrees not to claim or attempt to claim a federal income tax 

deduction or credit covering all or any part of the civil penalty paid to the United States 

Treasurer. 

55. If the Respondent fails to submit payment within thirty (30) days of the effective date 

of this CAFO, the Respondent may be subject to a civil action to collect any unpaid portion of 

the assessed penalty, together with interest, handling charges, and nonpayment penalties as set 

forth below. 

56. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717 and 40 C.F.R. § 13.11, unless otherwise prohibited by 

law, EPA will assess interest and late payment penalties on outstanding debts owed to the United 

States and a charge to cover the costs of processing and handling a delinquent claim. Interest on 

the civil penalty assessed in this CAFO will begin to accrue thirty (30) days after the effective 

date of the CAFO and will be recovered by EPA on any amount of the civil penalty that is not 

paid by the respective due date. Interest will be assessed at the rate of the United States Treasury 

tax and loan rate in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 13.1l(a). Moreover, the costs of the Agency's 

administrative handling of overdue debts will be charged and assessed monthly throughout the 

period the debt is overdue. See 40 C.F.R. § 13.11(b). 

57. EPA will also assess a $15.00 administrative handling charge for administrative costs 

on unpaid penalties for the first thirty (30) day period after the payment is due and an additional 
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$15.00 for each subsequent thirty (30) day period thatthe penalty remains unpaid. In addition, a 

penalty charge of up to six percent per year will be assessed monthly on any portion of the debt 

which remains delinquent more than ninety (90) days. See 40 C.F .R. § 13.11 (c). Should a 

penalty charge on the debt be required, it shall accrue from the first day payment is delinquent. 

See 31 C.P.R.§ 901.9(d). Other penalties for failure to make a payment may also apply. 

58. Pursuant to Section 113(d)(5) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d)(5), any person who 

fails to pay on a timely basis a civil penalty ordered or assessed under this section shall be 

required to pay, in addition to such penalty and interest, the United States enforcement expenses, 

including but not limited to, attorneys fees and costs incurred by the United States for collection 

proceedings, and a quarterly nonpayment penalty for each quarter during which such failure to 

pay persists. Such nonpayment penalty shall be 10 percent of the aggregate amount of such 

person's outstanding penalties and nonpayment penalties accrued as of the beginning of each 

quarter. 

59. This CAFO is considered a "prior violation" for the purpose of demons)rating a 

"history of noncompliance" under the Clean Air Act Stationary Source Penalty Policy, and the 

Combined Enforcement Policy for Clean Air Act Sections 112(r)(l), ll2(r)(7), and 40 C.P.R. 

Part 68 (June 2012). 

B. SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECT 

60. The Respondent shall purchase and donate to the Guymon; Oklahoma Fire 

Department a High Pressure Breathing Air Compressor for filling breathing air cylinders 

used by the Guymon Fire Department in emergency response activities. The equipment 

to be donated is described in more detail in Attachment A to this CAFO. The equipment 

shall be donated no later than six months from the effective date of this CAFO. 
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61. The Respondent is responsible for the satisfactory completion of the SEPs. The total 

expenditure for the SEPs described in Paragraph 60 shall be no less than $62,000. The 

Respondent hereby certifies that the cost information provided to EPA in connection with EPA's 

approval of the SEP is complete and accurate, and that the Respondent in good faith estimates 

that the cost to implement the SEP is $62,684. Eligible SEP costs do not include inventory on 

hand, overhead, additional employee time and salary, administrative expenses, legal fees, and 

oversight of a contractor. The Respondent shall include documentation of the expenditures made 

in connection with the SEP as part of the SEP Completion Report. 

62. The Respondent hereby certifies that as of the date of this CAFO, the Respondent is 

not required to perform or develop the SEP by any federal, state or local law or regulation; nor is 

the Respondent required to perform or develop the SEP by any other agreement, grant, or as 

injunctive relief in this or any other case. The Respondent further certifies that the SEP was not 

a project that the Respondent was planning or intending to construct, perform, or implement 

other than in settlement of this action. Finally, the Respondent certifies that it has not received, 

and is not presently negotiating to receive credit in any other enforcement action for this SEP, 

and that the Respondent will not receive reimbursement for any portion of the SEP from another 

person or entity. 

63. The Respondent also certifies that it is not a party to any open federal financial 

assistance transaction that is funding or could fund the same activity as the SEP described in 

Paragraph 60, and that it has inquired of the Guymon, Oklahoma Fire Department whether it is a 

party to an open federal financial assistance transaction that is funding or could fund the same 

activity as the SEP and has been informed by the Guymon, Oklahoma Fire Department that it is 

not a party to such a transaction. 
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64. Any public statement, oral or written, in print, film, or other media, made by the 

Respondent making reference to the SEP under this CAFO from the date of its execution of this 

CAFO shall include the following language: "This project was undertaken in connection with 

the settlement of an enforcement action against Seaboard Foods, LLC taken on behalf of the 

EPA to enforce federal laws." 

65. For federal income tax purposes, the Respondent agrees that it will neither capitalize 

into inventory or basis nor deduct any costs or expenditures incurred in performing the SEP. 

SEP Completion Report 

66. The Respondent shall submit a SEP Completion Report to EPA within thirty (30) 

days after completion of the SEP. The SEP Completion Report shall contain the following 

information: 

A. A detailed description of the SEP as implemented; 

B. A description of any operating or logistical problems encountered and the solutions 

thereto; 

C. Itemized final costs with copies of receipts for all expenditures; 

D. Certification that the SEP has been fully implemented pursuant to the provisions of 

this CAPO; and 

E. A description of the environmental, emergency preparedness, and/or public health 

benefits resulting from implementation of this SEP. 

67. The Respondent agrees that failure to timely submit the final SEP Completion Report 

shall be deemed a violation of this CAFO and Respondent shall become liable for stipulated 

penalties pursuant to Paragraph 72.F. 
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68. In itemizing its costs in the SEP Completion Report, Respondent shall clearly 

identify and provide acceptable documentation for all eligible SEP costs. Where the SEP 

Completion Report includes costs not eligible for SEP credit, those costs must be clearly 

identified as such. For purposes of this Paragraph, "acceptable documentation" includes 

invoices, purchase orders, or other documentation that specifically identifies and itemizes the 

individual costs of the goods and/or services for which payment is being made. Canceled drafts 

do not constitute acceptable documentation unless such drafts specifically identify and itemize 

the individual costs of the goods and/or services for which payment is being made. 

69. The Respondent shall submit the following certification in the SEP Completion 

Report, signed by a responsible corporate official: 

I certify under penalty of law that I have examined and am familiar with the 
information submitted in this document and all attachments and that, based on my 
inquiry of those individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the 
information, I believe that the information is true, accurate, and complete. I am 
aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, 
including the possibility of fines and imprisonment. 

70. After receipt of the SEP Completion Report described in Paragraph 66 above, EPA 

will notify the Respondent, in writing, regarding: (a) any deficiencies in the SEP Report itself 

along with a grant of an additional thirty (30) days for Respondent to correct any deficiencies; or 

(b) indicate that EPA concludes that the project has been completed satisfactorily; or (c) 

determine that the project has not been completed satisfactorily and seek stipulated penalties in 

accordance with Paragraph 72 below. 

71. If EPA elects to exercise option (a) in Paragraph 70 above, i.e., if the SEP Report is 

determined to be deficient but EPA has not yet made a final determination about the adequacy of 

SEP completion itself, then EPA shall permit the Respondent the opportunity to object in writing 

to the notification of deficiency given pursuant to Paragraph 70 within fifteen (15) days of 
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receipt of such notification. EPA and the Respondent shall have an additional thirty (30) days 

from the receipt by EPA of the notification of objection to reach agreement on changes necessary 

to the SEP Report. If agreement cannot be reached on any such issue within this thirty (30) day 

period, EPA shall provide a written statement of its decision on adequacy of the completion of 

the SEP to Respondent, which decision shall be final and binding upon the Respondent. The 

Respondent agrees to comply with any requirements imposed by EPA as a result of any failure to 

comply with the terms of this CAFO. In the event the SEP is not completed as reasonably 

contemplated herein, as determined by EPA, stipulated penalties shall be due and payable by 

Respondent to EPA in accordance with Paragraph 72 herein. 

Stipulated Penalties for Failure to Complete SEP/Failure to Spend Agreed-On 
Amount 

72. In the event that the Respondent fails to comply with any of the terms or provisions 

of this CAFO relating to the performance of the SEP described in Paragraph 60 of this CAFO 

and/or to the extent that the actual expenditures for the SEP do not equal or exceed the cost of 

the SEP described in Paragraph 61 above, the Respondent shall be liable for stipulated penalties 

according to the provisions set forth below: 

A. Except as provided in subparagraph (B) immediately below, for a SEP which has not 

been completed satisfactorily pursuant to this CAFO, the Respondent shall pay a stipulated 

penalty to .the United States in the amount of $50,14 7. 

B. If the SEP is not completed in accordance with Paragraphs 60-61, but EPA 

determines that the Respondent: a) made good faith and timely efforts to complete the project; 

and b) certifies, with supporting documentation, that at least 90 percent of the amount of money 

which was required to be spent was expended on the SEP, the Respondent shall not be liable for 

any stipulated penalty. 
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C. If the SEP is completed in accordance with Paragraphs 60- 61, but the Respondent 

spent less than 90 percent of the amount of money required to be spent for tl{e project, the 

Respondent shall pay a stipulated penalty to the United States in the amount of $25,074. 

D. If the SEP is completed in accordance with Paragraphs 60-61 and the Respondent 

spent at least 90 percent of the amount of money required to be spent for the project, the 

Respondent shall not be liable for any stipulated penalty. 

E. If the Respondent fails to timely complete the SEP (not including the SEP Completion 

Report) for any reason, the Respondent shall pay stipulated penalties as follows: 

Period of Noncompliance 

1st through 15th day 

16th through 30th day 

31st day and beyond 

Penalty Per Violation Per Day 

$ 500 

$ 1,000 

$2,500 

F. For failure to submit the SEP Completion Report required by Paragraph 66 above, the 

Respondent shall pay a stipulated penalty in the amount of $500 for each day after the report was 

originally due, until the report is submitted. 

73. The determinations of whether the SEP has been satisfactorily completed and 

whether the Respondent has made a good faith, timely effort to implement the SEP shall be in 

the sole discretion of EPA. 

74. Stipulated penalties for Paragraphs 72.E and 72.F above shall begin to accrue on the 

day after performance is due, and shall continue to accrue through the final day of the 

completion of the activity. 

75. Respondent shall pay stipulated penalties not more than thirty (30) days after receipt 

of written demand by EPA for such penalties. Method of payment shall be in accordance with 
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the provisions of Paragraph 53 herein. Interest and late charges shall be paid as stated in 

Paragraphs 56 - 57 herein. 

76. The EPA may, in its unreviewable exercise of its discretion, reduce or waive 

stipulated penalties otherwise due under this CAFO. 

C. NOTIFICATION 

77. Unless otherwise specified elsewhere in this CAFO, whenever notice is required to 

be given, whenever a report or other document is required to be forwarded by one party to 

another, or whenever a submission or demonstration is required to be made, it shall be directed 

to the individuals specified below at the addresses given (in addition to any action specified by 

law or regulation), unless these individuals or their successors give notice in writing to the other 

party that another individual has been designated to receive the communication: 

Complainant: 

Elizabeth Rogers 
RMP Enforcement Officer 
Superfund Prevention and Response Branch (6SF-EP) 
U.S. EPA, Region 6 
1445 Ross Aveime, Suite 1200 
Dallas, TX 75202-2733 
Respondent: 

Jennifer Chamo Nelson 
Senior Director of Environmental Affairs 
Seaboard Foods LLC 
9000 West 67th Street 
Suite 200 
Shawnee Mission, KS 66202 
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With a copy to: 

David Becker 
General Counsel 
Seaboard Corporation 
9000 West 67th Street 
Suite 300 
Shawnee Mission, KS 66202 

D. COMPLIANCE 

Docket No. CAA-06-2017-3514 

78. The Respondent hereby certifies that as of the date of the execution of this CAFO, 

that it has corrected the violations alleged herein, and is now, to the best of its knowledge, in 

compliance with all applicable requirements of Section 112(r) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(r) 

and 40 C.P.R. Part 68. 

E. MODIFICATION 

79. The terms, conditions, and compliance requirements of this CAFO may not be 

modified or amended except as otherwise specified in this CAPO, or upon the written agreement 

of the Complainant and the Respondent, and approved by the Regional Judicial Officer, and such 

modification or amendment being filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk. 

F. RETENTION OF ENFORCEMENT RIGHTS 

80. EPA does not waive any rights or remedies available to EPA for any other violations 

by the Respondents of Federal or State laws, regulations, or permitting conditions. 

81. Nothing in this CAFO shall relieve the Respondent of the duty to comply with 

Section 112(r) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(r), and 40 C.P.R. Part 68. 

82. Nothing in this CAPO shall limit the power and authority of EPA or the United 

States to take, direct, or order all actions to protect public health, welfare, or the enviromnent, or 

prevent, abate or minimize an actual or threatened release of hazardous substances, pollutants, 

contaminants, hazardous substances on, at or from the Respondent's facility whether related to 
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the violations addressed in this CAFO or otherwise. Furthermore, nothing in this CAFO shall be 

construed to prevent or limit EPA's civil and criminal authorities, or that of other Federal, State, 

or local agencies or departments to obtain penalties or i!1iunctive reliefunder other Federal, 

State, or local laws or regulations. 

83. The Complainant reserves all legal and equitable remedies available to enforce the 

provisions of this CAFO. In any such action to enforce the provisions of this CAFO,the 

Respondent shall not assert, and may not maintain, any defense of laches, statute of limitations, 

or any other equitable defense based on the passage of time. This CAFO shall not be construed . 

to limit the rights of the EPA or United States to obtain penalties or injunctive relief under the 

Clean Air Act or its implementing regulations, or under other federal or state laws, regulations, 

or permit conditions. 

84. In any subsequent administrative or judicial proceeding initiated by the Complainant 

or the United States for i!1iunctive relief, civil penalties, to enforce the provisions of this CAFO, 

or other appropriate relief relating to this Facility, the Respondent shall not assert, and may not 

maintain, any defense or claim based upon the principles of waiver, res judicata, collateral 

estoppel, issue preclusion, claim preclusion, claim-splitting, or other defenses based upon any 

contention that the claims raised by the Complainant or the United States in the subsequent 

proceeding were or should have been brought in the instant case, except with respect to claims 

for civil penalties that have been specifically resolved pursuant to this CAFO. 

85. The Respondent waives any right it may possess at law or in equity to challenge the 

authority of the EPA or the United States to bring a civil action in a United States District Court 

to compel compliance with this CAFO and to seek an additional penalty for such noncompliance, 

and agrees that federal law shall govern in any such civil action. The Respondent also consents 
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to personal jurisdiction in any action to enforce this CAPO in the appropriate Federal District 

Court. 

86. In any action to enforce this CAFO, the Respondent also waives any and all 

remedies, claims for relief, and otherwise available rights to judicial or administrative review 

that the Respondent may have with respect to any issue of law or fact set forth in this CAFO, 

including any right of judicial review under Section 307(b)(1) of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. 

§ 7607(b)(1). 

87. This CAFO is not a permit, or a modification of any permit, under any federal, State, 

or local laws or regulations. The Respondent is responsible for achieving and maintaining 

complete compliance with all applicable federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and permits. 

The Respondent's compliance with this CAFO shall be no defense to any action commenced 

pursuant to any such laws, regulations, or permits, except as set forth herein. The Complainant 

does not warrant or aver in any manner that the Respondent's compliance with any aspect of this. 

CAPO will result in compliance with provisions of the Clean Air Act or with any other 

provisions of federal, State, or local laws, regulations, or permits. 

G. COSTS 

88. Except as provided in Paragraph 58, each party shall bear its own costs and 

attorney's fees. 

H. TERMINATION 

89. At such time as the Respondent believes it is in compliance with all of the 

requirements of this CAFO, it may request that EPA concur whether all of the requirements of 

this CAFO have been satisfied. Such request shall be in writing and shall provide the necessary 

documentation to establish whether there has been full compliance with the terms and conditions 
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of this CAFO. EPA will respond to said request in writing within sixty (60) days of receipt of 

the request. This CAFO shall terminate when all actions required to be taken by this CAFO have 

been completed, and the Respondents have been notified by the EPA in writing that this CAFO 

has been satisfied and terminated. 

I. EFFECTIVE DATE 

90. This CAFO, and any subsequent modifications, become effective upon filing with 

the Regional Hearing Clerk. 
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THE UNDERSIGNED PARTIES CONSENT TO THE ENTRY OF THIS CONSENT 
AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER: 

FOR THE RESPONDENT: 

Date: u\za-j Z-ol~ 
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FOR THE COMPLAINANT: 

Date: I ybg i{ 1 
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FINAL ORDER 

Pursuant to the Section 113 dfthe CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413, and the Consolidated Rules of 

Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties, 40 C.F .R. Part 22, the 

foregoing Consent Agreement is hereby ratified. This Final Order shall not in any case affect the 

right of EPA or the United States to pursue appropriate injunctive relief or other equitable relief 

for criminal sanctions for any violations of law. This Final Order shall resolve only those causes 

of action alleged herein. Nothing in this Final Order shall be construed to waive, extinguish or 

otherwise affect the Respondent's (or its officers, agents, servants, employees, successors, or 

assigns) obligation to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes and regulations, 

including the regulations that were the subject of this action. The Respondent is ordered to 

comply with the terms of settlement as set forth in the Consent Agreement. Pursuant to 

40 C.F .R. § 22.31 (b), this Final Order shall become effective upon filing with the Regional 

Hearing Clerk. 

~a 
Thomas Rucki 
Regional Judicial Officer 
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ATTACHMENT A 

SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECT 
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4 AND 5-STAGE HIOH PRESSURE BREATHING AIR COMPRESSORS 
mh> game·chl!nglng fliUng station employs our state-oHhe-arr control system centered around a l 5-inch HMitouch screen lnterf<Jc·e, 
whlcll allows tho operator to manage the entire system from the single--polnl touch screen. UNICUS 41 has sr.veral innovativa Qptlonul 
features including BAUER Gas-Tak'~ monitoring !Jystern, Lab On l.ocalo 2'" not.f RFfD Re~der. 

I PRESSURE: 
5000 to 6000 PSIG 
(345 to 414 BAR) 

) CH.t-IRGING RATE: 
13 to 26.4 SCFfVI 
(368 to 748 L/MIN) 

) POWER: 
10to20HP 
(7.5 to 15 kW) 

> UNICUS41 
lSI-lOWING INSIDE FROND 

> UNICUS 41 

>UN! GUS 41 
{SHOWING INSIDE BACK) 



STANDARD SCOPE OF SUPPLY 
t OAUER bruatl\ing alr purification system with SECURUS 
> BAUER 15Minch HMI touah·soroon Interface 
1 Solid slilte a·uta cnscade system 
) Compn;ssot low oil pressure nnd high temperiJture safely shulduwns 
I Emol'goncy stop push bt1Uon 
J Ergonomic system-operations panel 
1 Ergonomically designed stainless steel fill adaptors wHh integral 

bleed vnlve 
>Automatic condensate drain system with non-i:lorrosive condensate 
reservoir i:lnd integrated float sensor nnd autonwtic "Full" Indication 
ond compressor sl1utdown 

J Two (2) ASME code Slllmped air cylinders installed In an iflfegrat 
rue/( designed to hold four cylinders 

) NFPA 1901 2016 r.dll1on compliJnl3 position c.ontalnmonl fill 
station llccommodates SCM or SCUBA r,y/lndets up to 31" 
overall fonglh 

AVAILABLE ACCESSOf'liES 
(FACTOHY INSTALLED) 

) BAUER Gas .. rerc ... gas monitoring system 
J Lab on locale 2'" aocratlitfld !'emote air tesUng system 
) RFID Reader which reads and records data rrom lhEJ RFID 

equipped cylinders 
) Hose reel for 100' of high pressure breathing <Jlr llose 
> Reg/RF 
• Dual F/1/JJ position 
J Tti Fill/3 position· 
~Additional ali :;toroge cylinders 

TECHNICAL DATA 

llU(r\111lo'IO Al/l C/1TALOt:; I UlllCtiS ·h 

SYSTEM FOOTPRINT 
-OIMI!NSIONS 1. x W x H fnchos (mm} 

> 101" .~; 30" x 71J~ (2565mm :< 965mm x IQBlmm) 

WEIGHl' pollnds {lql) 

l il350 -1~550 lb 11973. 2064 l<g! 

I)N!GlJS<Ii<!0·~3 21 595 15 il 1/.b P5SECUflUS 

~AWi~~~~~~~tt-~~---~--1it1iY~~~:t"'-~":f'"'*"~"'~:,.'"~~"";~sl 
UNICUS •II 13· EI/E<I IJ JM •I tt} 1.5 10./) P2 SECURUS 

UNICUS ·11 • I 8· E~ tn !110 lfi II rs smu_tws 
U/~ICUS:·\1·25-E:I ?.5.2 11-1 lfJ 15 21 P&SfCUrtUS 
~-----------··---··------~·-------,·----~···--~·---· --------------·--. 
'''1.•\ollll' 11• "'"•'ni ,,,~ 1 I o ·~ :1J • t.-~;\0{\l oJO.)(I)"'f. 
• ! 1.1'1/U•'I.l 1 -~'ll ,, n •r·· , J!• '1-11 oJ~u' INc !11~111!•0! I·~N~n!o • I·:>' 



So arch 

Broa!hlng Air Syatema 

lndu.ln;l AA syotomJ jfol\lj)ll)dUti$•1Kl111!1on&lln~\.1911lllf-tl!r•i)'llloll'll) 

fJronlhlll{) Ail 6ya1~ms {/aWproduviJ-sclul!oM!broall~llfHII'·~fli!l!rmt) 

FlroH/}h!llllJ flenljnldlld$-ftoiUikln!U'bllllllhillg.!llr·&~l(lmllliN!iBhUno) 

AI 1 P'Udb l)qtl !IIICUIIJ& t/anfpi'PdlldHoi!IIIIJIIV!illiJllhlrJI}~!r·~YIIt.lmtllfroftohb'ogf<lolr·piJJiftcnlkln-'OWIU;) 

Nr 13tonl~ t {l$nlp!OQJ<b·lll11lRionlflmi•Wnllo:~IN)11!hm11rl((lliohtltll}lll~llcrngu) 

Au\.Q Clluado ji(IIJ/fl(Dd~®oiuTilntt~lhln~r-sytUIIm/n/l.lllgMI~!iiP.Il1lro!dO) 

COIIIIIFMll!nl fl)l B!ut.o n !.l-5 ~~~S 5.~) (/trVpi'OIIuc:lHD!utlon!/illl)olh/II(Hlll>ll)'!lamJ!IIrllf\gh~nlllhlffll.\flH~~IIltloo-5:M:fi-55»CZ')W!) 

MINI vermcus"' omf t.Q.XI v~mncUS'~~" (IGt!/pfO<ftJ~IH(li«U~nl!JhlwlhiD[J•O.Ir·syaloms~nran~h!lnnfmln!-wltlcul~%11'l-DDd·rnu».Yurtiru•%1l!l~ll4%1\2) 

MIN! UNlCUS@ ((ftfl/products-I>Jiullonlllbrao.lhlng'l!/t·l)'lllem!llftl!llQhUrr{lllll~l"i!tlktU'X02%M!) 

Ot:rSHORI:! (/ut!/Piodll«'"•!lMio!IIArlw.llhlng.Dlr~ICill~rllolil!hllnofPtftflolll) 

Oil on Oollgllt (lt>nfptO{tuci$-Bd'll\!MJJ\',MI!IUJ!J!g-alr.-11)1.1~11\Vftlo!J.,jhlf!IQiopan.Uol/gn~) 

T•COM~llln Trri!rlll {fonlpro!{U~ufonllbrellihllll!-lllt•~IIIIWfltllfiutrllll!Jit~lla'!IC~f.AE,IfiiQoJ) 

i·COM\111.'11-!nliH Tr~~U~~r !lllNPhld uc: ... mutlonll'\)tuattdnu-atr-~J~ernllll'lrtlllQhiJnoll-!:Qm%Q\tAE· 13lJ25tHt~llr!i) 
UN!CVS IIllO f/oolpNductt~olullonSJllrolllhln!]•niM~temtJnrnnotllln(lfun!!:tl!!•lli%02%Ni) 

UN(CU8e'41(/QrJprllllu~d~lklA~nltllnlt<I!M~omll/llfllllghVtlp/'LIIIftti~%C2'1Wt-4J) 

VERlECIJNEI {IGillpnxftH;Is·501li!IGnl1bll,lll\ll!IJU•Ilfl-1)11~ffi3/Mlf1QhllniJ!vo.ltacan'KC2%f\.!i) 

ScUEIA Olvina {lorVprodu~ul\;)rtSJ\uoai/Jlnu'fllr~~~m.IIMI:tlb.n-dMno) 

Mi!!UII)' [Jra~!h'n[J M Prlltlur.-11 (1111'/,Dr'Qd!lcl.NoluJimK!mr ~lh~IHY!ilon\1/mU!Url}'<bmiAAIIJ!!·lllr·ploduW) 

LEG/ICY Prog~m fi~~J~J.-~!ui/Qn~/fl,j)~lo\g-lriMI"lumS/Tou!C}'"Ilf'J!ll'aM) 

0) u11d GoD Dran\lll11g Nr {lor/pJQdUCic-liO!utlonl/b.lv~lhln g·&rl/ot)'J(Qml/~"llfld.tlol-billlllh'll!rllltJ 

CQ01pll.l$~ar flWI!I,I Qu~JI~ns (/ntr!prnductv·~oluUooll!'nt&nU\ln!Hllr·~lo.t»t/tompNIJDHW'II{MIIII!liiiOM•ll) 

ru amf 0119 f/M/pflkluttt-solulklnlffiHifki•UB$) 

C:N9 ({Oj!/piodUelHOM'~&'tn{l) 

NHr~onjlon/pwducu--soMI~uUrraf..'SYJ!l(lf)l$1r11l((>jlvl1) 

Platl~ ToehiiD109f!I.0/11~&aluti)•IUpl;tUC8·*hll<liOQy) 

OI.WM~!lory(l6hlptuductn•~U~IW"glll) 

l'llk\lbDI! I ~att-lathl!l\.uw l;ltlo~ (/cnlprOthlt:l~-lid'ullollJ/pDJplb!iiH~IH!IIho).I~~Hnln~fr'l(tiiH';(II!IpfllUUIII) 

Publlc Saltlfy (flll'/pf"'lductl·toluUCIIl11'publ"ill--.n(~ly} 

UNICUS"41 

Thl& tJYifl.!l-diMgl<lu fi!Hitllnn_uf~¥.1~111'$ aurltll/~t·d.(h~al\ l:>lnlroltl}'illlm wilflu 124nth 111.11 10\letu!'.l'!Unlnlolfuq, whfdJ u!IIIW!l UJa 
op~ta!or to nmn~g111h11 u/'UJi eyJ~Uifl from t!JolllnGf""PQ~nl raucllkttlolll. 

CJo.nofllJ lncludo: 

l Tho \nhgrtlltd 12.\nch IILII!olll:h l't:/1011 oillm8 OflllMI!IIll to COn IIlli thlt ~nl/tO Oytl!IIJI flllln 11 C>)n/nii]OQ:IIIortwl!h M Ybll~ 
frltotfoco o\ d &~ll11Tl f~KJc&:rlo. 

> Th~ opUonal t:IAUER O&ll•l'Dklllan' mon~o!lnll ly11ofii\Jl~ r!ot&-Of·lhiH!lf gn• ~OII:IlltlndllloiOWwllhi~!Mlmo IIUII-Wll«fll or 
brca!h!tJg af( qU~(Uy to Ill-StU' Mfaly. T~ o!amonll;of CO and olhBI fulmiM Q316llltl ormu olpraWIIInYII ~ r!UC:O thll 
romptnuotw lihu\ orr l!lld ISbploy~n ulatrn oo Ure HMI lo!/th ISOl!tln. ilm ttMI wmnl,ooUiomal!t:a~y ptotnp! o Qllallurfy ty;J!nm 
CllHbl;'lUtiJJ lo ll(t;o/daJlCG 1\Wl NFf>A guldDUPn. 

) Thlt b)itlon•l U.b art L9o01d• 21M fucll~ll»i rtJI!).IJmu tomPinu of lht1 rompt~~nod alrllnlllrnMMiff ttr!lfltlld'l1g1 vl11/nl~m01 uplink 
to on O!!aodlt~dlllfld•poltyll!b fo eott.JyqiW/tllrlr Jl!r wmplo tosllnumpanlfl!,J au prolaillG!J by NFPA t!!U!l. 

} Thn optiQn•l hf!Q n'atl~r{OiliiH.~Qinl.lln\!lihiNJ fiUiomnlleaty roM' I Mlf roconts dolo. ttomu" HFIO aqvfp)l«< SCBA ql1Mof1. 
Sm~r &allhli C)'illld~ri/]Diltl g{l!lf&li (:l}fd! po!111t!IU llfld lllf.IICaltml lllll011llll 'MV rJutomalftit!IY iJ/l)'lkiO lhi! 



daii!Aoi:JirJonfpro"u~o~ otU'KIIdlifill v.longv.llll ~drlal il~~r.and lh~ txll\l.l'u IQ\ftlnumborol f/15. NFPA 1D!IO ®14 
co!!~o;ilon ITlod'o tUI.'/• 

Tot:Iinlc:al ODlll 

OCIWnlnd• 

DlMI!NiliOtiO LX W)( H /ru)hU (mnl) 

l Till X i'IJ X JO (21X!5): t!IS1 k VJl~) 

WliiGHT ~1.ml!J (ill) 

) 4~SO·o!G!F0(1973·20e4) 

'Wolijhl'loru ~100' (In 1;1 unll oqulp;!old with <I i\$MI:4 

CCimpr.IIIOf Comp.atfm~ml 

> C.pobto of IIAAillll100111ill(111 13 !o2tl SCFM dlorao mto 
~ lntufalu!j C<Jl>irtlll dOIIOI! fur'A\ln!Milho W11U lllllalk!Uoll' 

CUAUf:fl COMPRESSORS, INC, lllt(JIIWod to ISO 11001, tWI A:rol~o G~r<lon Rd. No1rolk, Virulnln 23S02 

UNIOUS .oil 

Voflo!Or Forrn (fvalldW·kllln) Cl.lll!omcr saU4fncllofl S(ltVIIY (http,'/fii,'WI'oi~UtlaQdb~ek.tooJIIII!10ZWoSR) l>ffvocy ~tolanl\!111 (IC!lllprlvocy•slaltmit!Jl} l ol}~ S !PIIJn'l~nl (f~MI;l!I&I.Joforrnn~on) 

61l (hlipa'l/IVWN./acollaol!.wi'JSau!fiComp)[j !111lpt~:J/h'llllnr.conv'Bnuurc!1lllpi\}SlfJI')ffij (hi~'/NNIWJIM!Idlrl.wmfwmpanyibaul)r-eampruuotJ·Inc-) (!}; 
(hltp~)fwww.yauJubll.c:am'ch~IIOMIUCb:7_ 'I'·GGVS~ghU02.0A.IIlnA) 

"'' 



CONRAD FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. 
QUOTATION 
132704 

887 N. Jan-Mar Court Olathe, KS 66061 
www.CONRADFIRE.coll 
(913) 780-5521 
(800) 779-5521 
(913) 780-5251 Fax 

BILL TO: 

CASH CUSTOMER 

PHONE: 
FAX· 

DATE SHIP VIA 

IW/V~'"' GROUND 

PURCHASE OROER NUMBER ORDER OAT~ 

BAUER COMPRESSOR 10/03/17 

QUANTITY 
ITEM NUMBER 

ORDEReD, SHIPPEU , 
l' !!Al\.UN4I/13-E3 
2. I BAA.CYL-9/6K 
l i ' BAI\.GT/C0/4I 
' ! 
I i i 
i ! , 

i 
i 
f 

I 
! 

i ' ' \ 
i i I 
' i , 

i I 
I 

! 
' 

I 

! 
' 

I 
I 

J 

Product Total Discount Freight 
57,258.48 o.oo 

F.O,B. 

CUSTOMER NO. 

1805 

SHIP TO: 

CASH CUSTOMER 
SEABOARD FOODS 
2700 NE 28TH ST 
GUYMON, OK 73942, 

PAGE 1 

TERMS 

LA>H ONLr 

SALESPERSON OuR QUOTE NUMBER 

163 179 132704 

DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT 

UNICUS~i, 6000PSIG 1 13SCFM1 3PIIAS 48,347,23 i 48,347.23 
liS ME 60 0 0 CXL l1 /RV & CLAMPS I 2,606,31 i 5, 612.62 
GAS TEi< MONITOR(CALGI\S INCLD'D j 3,298. 63 3,296.63 

! •·• *CUSTOMER WILL BE ! \ RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY : j 
iASSOCIATED FREIGHT 
i CHARGES~** 
i-FREIGHT CAN BE BETWEEN, BliT 
'NO'l' 1rMITED TO, TH!l: $750,00 
! TO $1 1 000.00 RANGE. AN < 

ACCURI\'fE !'REIG!lT ESTIMATE CAN 

I !BE OBTAINED PRIOR TO PLACING 
\ AN ORDER AS RA'rF:S OFTEN 
I CBANGE 
; 

! 
I ' ! ( ! 

i 
i 
\ 

' i 

Taxable Amount Tax Mlsc.Amt. QUOTATION TOTAL 
57,258.48 5,425.24 62, 683.72 

"WE APPRECIATE YOURBUSINESS" 
RlrrURNED GOODS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED WITHOUT PRIOR RETURN AUTHORIZATION NUMBER FROM CONRAD 

FIRE EQUIPMENT. ALL RETURNS ARE SUBJECT TO A RESTOCKING FEE. 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on the 5th day of December, 2017, the original and one copy of the 

foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) was hand delivered to the Regional 

Hearing Clerk, U.S. EPA- Region 6, 1445 Ross Avenue, Dallas, Texas 75202-2733, and that a 

trne and correct copy of the CAFO was sent to the following by certified mail, return receipt 

requested 7014 0150 0000 2454 5569: 

Jennifer Charno Nelson 
Director of Environmental Affairs 
Seaboard Foods LLC 
9000 West 67111 Street 
Suite 200 
Shawnee Mission, KS 66202 
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